
New Jersey City University 

Board of Trustees 

2039 Kennedy Boulevard 

Jersey City, NJ 07305-1597 

njcu.edu 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE 

December 4, 2023 
To Begin in GSUB 316 for Executive Session@ 12:00 p.m. 

To Resume in GSUB 129 for Public Meeting @ 5:00pm 

AGENDA 

12:00pm Public Meeting to Open and Proceed in Executive Session (GSUB 316) 
I. Board Retreat

5:00pm Public Meeting- to Resume in GSUB 129 
11. Roll Call
Ill. Approval of the Minutes from the September 11, 2023, BOT Meeting (Action item) 
IV. Chair's Report
V. President's Report

A. University Update
VI. Committee Reports

A. Executive Committee (Action Items)
1. Personnel I Compensation

B. Finance and Audit Committee
1. FY 2024 Operating Budget Update

c. Mission Committee (Action Items)
1. Mission Refresh
2. Academic Masterplan
3. Enrollment & Retention

VII. Old Business
VIII. New Business

IX. Next Meeting- February 20, 2024
X. Adjournment

SCHEDULE 
12:00 p.m. Executive Session-GSUB 316 
5:00 p.m. Public Session-GSUB 129 

Individuals that wish to address the New Jersey City University Board of Trustees must submit a 
request to speak form accessible from the following university webpage in accordance with Board 

policy: 
https :/ /www.njcu.edu/ about/ administration-governance/board-trustees/ speaker-request-form 

A copy of the terms for addressing New Jersey City University's Board of Trustees may be obtained 

at the following link: 
https://www.njcu.edu/about/administration-govemance/board-trustees/terms-addressing-new-jersey
city-universitys-board-trustees 

1 



ATTENDING: 

New Jersey City University 
Board of Trustees 

September 11, 2023 

Public Session Minutes 

Mr. Luke Visconti, Chair (Zoom) 
Dr. Steven Chang (Zoom) 
Mr. Edward Fowlkes (Zoom) 
Mr. Carlos Lejnieks (In-Person) 
Mr. Rafael Perez (Zoom) 
Dr. Irene Trowell-Harris (Zoom) 
Dr. Edward Whittaker (Zoom) 
Mr. Andres Acebo, Interim President - Ex Officio (In-Person) 
Ms. Ashley Pottinger, Student Trustee- Voting Member (In-Person) 
Ms. Monica de los Rios, Interim University Legal Counsel (In-Person) 
Mr. Henry Amoroso, State Appointed Monitor (In-Person) 
Ms. Rose Mary Reilly, Secretary to the Board of Trustees (In-Person) 

Absent- Mr. David Valica, Student Trustee -Non-Voting 

Ms. Reilly welcomed the public who joined at the NJCU Main Campus - Gothic Lounge. 

The meeting was called to order at 5:36 PM by Ms. Reilly. 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Ms. Reilly noted that the time, date, location and agenda for this meeting were mailed to the Jersey 
Journal, the Star-Ledger, Office of the Secretary of State, Senate Majority Office, Council of New 
Jersey State College Locals and the New Jersey Association of State Colleges and Universities on 
September 6, 2023. Notice of this meeting was also posted on the University's email system and 
website. 

REORGANIZATION 

-----1nterim-President-Acebo-welcomed the new student trustees Ashley Pottinger (voting), and David 
Valica (non-voting and absent), recently appointed ex-officio members Dr. Meriem Bendaoud 
Faculty Representative, Dr. Helen Dao Chair of the Alumni Association, and Peter Hernandez, 
Chair of the Foundation Board. Mr. Visconti was nominated and appointed as Chairman of the 
Board of Trustees. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Ms. Reilly requested a motion to approve the Minutes from the June 26, 2023 Board Meeting. The 
motion was moved by Mr. Visconti and seconded by Mr. Perez. (Yes-Mr. Visconti, Dr. Chang, 
Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell-Harris, Dr. Whittaker; No
None; Abstention-None; Absent-None). The motion passed. 

2 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

BOARD CHAIR'S REPORT 

Mr. Visconti thanked the Board of Trustees for his appointment as Chairman of the Board of 
Trustees and is grateful for the opportunity to serve the NJCU community and stressed the 
importance of good governance. Chairman Visconti welcomed Henry Amoroso, who was 
appointed as State Monitor at NJCU. Prior to joining the Board of Trustees in 2020, Mr. Visconti 
previously served as the Chair of the NJCU Foundation Board. 

INTERIM PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

UNIVERSITY UPDATE 

Interim President Acebo and Mr. Brian Kirkpatrick, Vice President of Administration and Finance 
highlighted the progress made over the last year, reducing a structural operating deficit of $23M 
to $8.lM and recommended a budget adjustment for the FY 2024 budget of $2.0M - inclusive of 
additional revenue and expense reductions to reduce the structural deficit to $6. lM. The Interim 
President noted NJCU serves the most diverse student community in the state and is among the 
most diverse in the country. Investing in institutions like NJCU, that drive economic mobility 
through access to affordable higher education, has never been more critical and NJCU will 
continue its mission of ensuring that every student is able to receive the education they need to 
thrive in their own community. 

FY23 FINANCIAL UPDATE 

Mr. Brian Kirkpatrick, Vice President of Administration and Finance, provided an update on the 
FY24 proposed budget as distributed. 

N J C LJ Budget Adjustments as of August 31, 2023 

911S2023 

Dc,ai!)tli,n 
Uncbimcd Pro pe!!J Staie of NJ 

Gravnd rtntlbd 1 IUwt 2 

UACS ,eat .,unoe 

lanl. of Amerka ..eep •ccoun b 4.5% 

IWJ IH lceMIO ap-eemmt 

Additlonal llruclllral gb,y uwip 

Frinp b-r• non ""'•r adjlnlment 
Subtotal 

Net OIA funding of Sl.lM leu Sl.SM 
already lnduded in budfl!l 

Slabiliadon aid 
Totol 

Filal'l'ar2014 
Uabudgted Sni9s 
s 

295,896 

llCl.265 

412.SOO 

416..UJ 

1.1'5.000 

JSCl.000 
2,lf0.)27 

2.)01.000 

10.0C0.000 
s l5.1'7.J27 

s 

s 

Rsal'l'ar2Cl2S 
ludcet Sainp 

295,196 

79U21 

495,000 

510.000 

na 

1.D95.1H 

Oner.nec...h 
Sninp • Pnor Yun 
s )47,000 

U0.554 

667.554 

1.Cl9!i.1l4 S 661.554 

J 

3 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

N J C LJ Year End Financial Data 
------

F!f2020 F'/2� FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 

Tuition-. & fee,; 99,034.000 !illi.818.000 92.5'15,000 82,831,.000 82,183.000 

Auxllln,v Eme,p,lscs 3,591.000 1,70]..000 2.927.000 2,500,000 2,534,000 

l.ffS lnstnutlonal �l!K C9,.S 16.000) Cl0,717.0001 (14,293.0001 (14,000,000/ ( ll,201,DOO) 
Fc,d4r.1I, State & Pnv.no Gr.,nts 4,S44,000 A,262..000 6,265,000 1-'199.000 
Slate Approp,tauon 21,532,,000 26PJ2.000 30,92.4.000 33,913.000 27,!106.000 
S,ato P;lid Frinse B<,ndits 24,258,000 l5,7n,»00 23,916.000 19,400,000 18,077,000 
S,lmUIUS Funds 5,523,000 27.187.000 16,747.000 
All O,har RovenU<? 361; 1.140 3.721,000 4,242,000 .. , 192.0l,IO 
1"ot:al JleV'l."Jlue 152 .567.001 172,922.000 .162 753,000 128 86000 12::1.190 000 

salaries and Wages 92,439,000 83.SC0,.000 88,581.000 79,075,000 73,.833,000 
Frfnao 9on.,,its 23,745,000 26,363.000 22,348.000 19,961,000 18,826,000 
tnsu,ance 499,000 42.4.000 478,000 469,000 470

,.
D00 

Ulilities 2,894,000 2,728.000 3,273,000 4,850,000 4,350,000 
Other Non Petsonnt:t E,tpense 27,979,000 26,717.000 23.623,000 20,970,000 23,744,000 
CARf.S/HEERF Oiroct PaymP.nts 3,894.000 6,582.000 7,183.000 5,751,000 
Bad Debt & OthCf' Stud<?nt Atd 3.626.000 3,461.000 2,284,000 

5.972JJOO 6,246.000 

4 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

N JC LJ FY 2024 Adjusted Budget 

JYJ!)Z, FYlCR4 niau 

Tdfcns&fan s (l.SOQOOq s s Jg�JDO 

...... [&tapizs UJ4.0al us� J.MIQ.000 J.-0.tlllO 

ie,st· Waenaod� llUOU)a)J J.S)QDOO '10,101.Cllq .,ouoq 
red«nl,5tace a.,.._ Cnltb 1..4n.DCD lA!).alO 1.AIH.tOO 

�� J� 2',«16, a,«16 

Sblle Sl:itm ....... � 10.a>OJJOO somo..a,o 

Sc-. P.lid Jril9 ...,.,,.Jb l.l.077,Da> '191.JSCII 11.11$.150 11.JU� 
OU,..__ 1.5CQl)CI) 1,50Q.aJO J,JOl J,107 
AIOlhaan.r- 4,.1noa, 4.J,91.CIJO 4.192 
Tot� ltft•m ur tll,190.000 l,IYA,7'"..0 12f,2.f.t,7'"..0 lz,J07,000 136,5!.1,7!.0 

SmriesmldW.115D n.a,.su 
�elcaef'CI 11,114,327 IUU,327 
......,._ 47QJ)Q) lllQ,000 IDOJ}IKJ 

utitia 4JSQOCO 4,JSQ.0)0 4,JS0,(11)1) 
Ofle, ,.,,,-hnav,d c..,,,,ur llJ&-USS ll.J«.615 D,JU,615 
°"P'em!OI IQJOS,OCO 10,105.000 10,105.mG 
TIil� mscs t:ll.3Z7.7QJ l..ll06.2!,0 129,S:Zl;l!a 129.!.ZIA!il 

9/1512023 >I. - ' . ,. � 

5 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

N JC LJ Month End Net Cash Balances 

560.C,OO)')ro 

SSl>.000.no> 

$,1,0p:n,oo:l 

S20,.000.tm 

$ J0,.000))00 

so 

9115r.2ll23 6 

REQUESTS TO SPEAK 

The following individuals requested to speak at the public session of the Board and were called 
forward by Ms. Reilly: 

Dr. Fran Moran, University Senate President, addressed the Board in support of the Board of 
Trustees approval of the proposed amendments to the Senate Constitution empowering shared 
governance. 

Dr. Gloria Boseman addressed the Board and shared her sentiments/concerns on Dr. Amoroso's 

role, the State Appointed Monitor, at NJCU and stated that she looks forward to his gathering of 

data. Dr. Boseman congratulated Dr. Dao on her appointment as an ex-officio member to the 

Board. Lastly, Dr. Boseman addressed her ongoing concern regarding the need to increase 

minority faculty hires. 

-----t· r:-Wi-lliarn-ealathes, AFT-Chief-Negotiator-&-Professor of Griminal-Justice, -addressed-th-----

challenges NJCU has been facing, as well as the partnerships and tough decisions that have been 

made to support the students. 

Barbara Hildner, AFT Local President, addressed the Board in support of new beginnings, the new 
Chair, and welcomed Mr. Amoroso. She applauded the hard work that has been done so far, having 
achieved a debt reduction to $6. lM - all while preserving the mission of the University. Ms. 
Hildner encouraged the Board to add a regular Board of Trustees Public Session before the next 
scheduled meeting in February 2024 and invited members of the Board of Trustees to meet with 
Faculty for lunch or dinner to share ideas. She encouraged everyone in the NJCU community to 
work together towards 2027, which marks the beginning of the second century of NJCU's 
existence. 

6 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Ms. Reilly put forward the request to approve the NJCU Resolution Affirming Designation of 
Rose Mary Reilly as Secretary to the Board of Trustees. The motion was moved by Mr. Visconti 
and seconded by Ms. Trowell-Harris (Yes-Mr. Visconti, Dr. Chang, Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, 
Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell-Harris, Dr. Whittaker; No-None; Abstention-None; Absent
None). The motion passed. 

NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY 
RESOLUTION AFFIRMING PRESIDENT'S APPOINTMENT OF 

BOARD SECRETARY 

WHEREAS: Pursuant to Article VI of the New Jersey City University ("NJCU") Board 

of Trustees ("Board of Trustees") By-Laws, the Board shall organize annually during the month 

of September each year and elect officers as may be necessary; and 

WHEREAS: The By-Laws further provide that a Secretary to the Board shall be 

appointed by the President and that the Secretary be a non-trustee member of the President's staff; 

and 

WHEREAS: Rose Mary Reilly is currently a member of the President's staff and holds 

the position of Project Coordinator; and 

W:1IEREAS: Interim President Andres Acebo now seeks to exercise such powers, rights

and privileges that are given to him under the By-Laws and appoints Rose Mary Reilly as Secretary 

to the Board of Trustees; and now be it 

RESOLVED: That the Board of Trustees, on September 11, 2023, does hereby affirm 

Interim President Acebo's appointment of Rose Mary Reilly to be Secretary to the Board of 

Trustees. 

____ Jli�----
Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
September 11, 2023 

7 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

Ms. Reilly put forward the request to approve the NJCU Resolution Amending the FY 2024 
Operating and Capital Budgets. The motion was moved by Mr. Visconti and seconded by Mr. 
Lejnieks (Yes-Mr. Visconti, Dr. Chang, Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. 
Trowell-Harris, Dr. Whittaker; No-None; Abstention-None; Absent-None). The motion passed. 

NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 

OPERA TING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 

WHEREAS: State Colleges and Universities have been authorized to establish revenue, 
expense, and capital budget projections for the FY24; and 

WHEREAS: The New Jersey City University ("University") Board of Trustees on June 
26, 2023, approved the tuition rates, room and board rates, and rates for other fees for the 
2023/2024 academic year; and 

WHEREAS: The University prepared its operating and capital budgets for FY24 based on 
projected State appropriation and tuition and fee increases, which projected total operating 
revenues and expenses and capital expenditures as outlined in its FY24 budget proposal; and 

WHEREAS: The Board of Trustees reviewed the FY24 budget projections at its June 26, 
2023, public meeting and adopted same; and 

WHEREAS: The University has _su�cessfully continued its right-sizing measures 
structural operating deficit reduction efforts, which reduced its initial deficit of $22. 7 million ( as 
of 1/2023) to $8.1 million (as of 6/2023) s FY2024; and 

WHEREAS: Since July 1, 2023, the University has continued its collaborative 
implementation of its recovery and revitalization framework for long-term financial sustainability, 
mission focus, and student success which realized additional recurring revenue in-lays and 
finalizing of right-sizing measures that further reduce the structural operating deficit down to 
approximately $6.1 million (as of 8/23); and 

WHEREAS: the reduction in the University's deficit excludes any institutional 
staoiI1zatlon n mg secure m the FY24 State of ew ersey ooget Appropnation (totaling $TO 
million) or the full increase to the University's outcomes based funding allocation ; and 

WHEREAS: The University will continue to provide regular financial updates throughout 
the fiscal year to the Board of Trustees and recommend any necessary adjustments in furtherance 
of cost containment strategies; and now be it 

RESOLVED: That the New Jersey City University Board of Trustees, on September 11, 
2023, does hereby approve the Amended FY24 Operating and Capital Budgets as appended hereto. 

8 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
September 11, 2023 

Ms. Reilly put forward the request to approve the NJCU Resolution to Ratify University Senate 

Constitution Amendments. The motion was moved by Mr. Visconti and seconded by Mr. Lejnieks 

(Yes-Mr. Visconti, Dr. Chang, Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell

Harris, Dr. Whittaker; No-None; Abstention-None; Absent-None). The motion passed. 

NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY 

RESOLUTION RATIFYING UNIVERSITY SENATE CONSITUTION AMENDMENTS 

WHEREAS: New Jersey City University's (the "University") University Senate and 
Administration have dutifully worked to enhance and strengthen shared governance at New Jersey 
City and to ensure that the voices of all stakeholders and constituents inform the university 
deliberations, mission focus, and pursuit of academic excellence and student success; and 

. .-

WHEREAS: The University Senate has promulgated proposed amendments to its 
constitution to intentional engage representation from adjunct faculty, ensure transparency in the 
charge and composition of standing and ad hoc committees, and strengthen shared governance and 
deliberative informed servant leadership of the University's mission by explicitly enshrining the 
principles of shared governance in university senate constitution; and 

WHEREAS: Recently, the Board amended, at the recommendation of Interim President 
Acebo, its bylaws to strengthen the unequivocal alignment of shared governance values and 
principles by establishing ex officio membership to the Board of Trustees a tenured faculty 
representative at the June 26, 2023 public meeting of the Board of Trustees; and now be it 

RESOLVED: That the New Jersey City University Board of Trustees, on September 11, 

2023, does hereby ratify the amendments to the University Senate Constitution as appended hereto. 

Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
September 11, 2023 

9 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

Ms. Reilly put forward the request to approve the action items, which included Faculty and 

Professional Staff Reappointments, and Managerial and Professional Staff New Hires, as of June 

2023. The motion was moved by Mr. Visconti and seconded by Ms. Trowell-Harris (Yes-Mr. 

Visconti, Dr. Chang, Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell-Harris, 

Dr. Whittaker; No-None; Abstention-None; Absent-None). The motion passed. 

Personnel I Compensation 

Managerial Regular Appointments 

1. Patrick Bartole, Director, FCM
Facilities & Construction Management
New Salary:$ 128,000
Effective: 7/1/2023

Managerial Salary Adjustment/Reclassification 

1. Patricia Altomonte, Interim A VP Finance
Finance
Salary: $168,000
Effective: 7/1/2023

2. Dr. Donna Breault, Interim Senior Vice President and University Provost
Academic Affairs
Salary: $230,000
Effective: 9/1/2023

3. Dr. Rachel Fester, Vice President for Institutional Effectiveness
Office of Institutional Effectiveness
Salary: $175,000 
Effective: 7/1/2023 

Managerial Temporary Appointments 

__ Milagros.E.eralta, Chiefof.Staff 
President's Office 
Salary: $130,000 
Effective: 7/12/2023 

2. Mona Jha, Director, EEO/AA/Diversity
University Counsel
Salary: $130,000
Effective: 9/5/2023

10 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

Managerial Temporary to Permanent Appointments 

1. Lorena Laverde, Director, Academic Advising
Academic Affairs
Salary: $130,000
Effective: 9/5/2023

Professional Staff Regular Appointments 

1. Michael Arbitblit, Transfer Evaluator- PSS3
Registrar
Salary: $66,217.05
Effective: 7/31/2023

2. Evelin Candelario, Assistant Director, Enrollment Communications
Admissions
Salary: $86,641.15
Effective: 9/11/2023

3. Alan Cruz, Asst Director Pre-College Programs- Asst Director 3
VP Academic Affairs
Salary: $60,454.95
Effective: 8/27/2023

4. Brian Gustafson, Transfer Evaluator- PSS3
Registrar

5. 

Salary: $66,217.05
Old Salary: $110,245.13
Effective: 8/14/2023
Reassignment from Faculty (AFT)

Kenneth Machain, ISS Global Initiatives -Assistant Director 1
International Student Advisement
Salary: $84,513.79
Old Salary: $113,921.06-------ffective: 7 /172023
Reassignment from Faculty (AFT) 

6. Robert Romeo, Academic Advisor- PSS3
University Advisement Center
Salary: $77,741.15
Old Salary:$ 93,712.74
Effective: 7/1/2023
Reassignment from Faculty (AFT)

11 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

Professional Staff Temporary Appointments 

1. Vera Dika, ISS Global Initiatives- Assistant Director 1
International Student Advisement
Salary: $84,513.79
Old Salary: $110,245.13
Effective: 9/11/2023
Reassignment from Faculty (AFT)

NEW HIRES 

Professional Staff Regular Appointments 

1. Dana Smerda-Mason, Educational Support Technology- PSS4
Educational Technology
Salary: $57,192.50
Effective: 9/11/2023

2. Andrea Titler, Career Readiness Manager- PSS4
Dean School of Business- Grant Funded
Salary: $77,078.93
Effective: 9/11/2023

Managerial Regular Appointments 

1. Hasson Gordon, Director, Budget
Controller's Office
Salary: $120,000
Effective: 9/11/2023

------- -

12 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

Ms. Reilly put forward the request to approve the NJCU Resolution Authorizing Application to 
the State of New Jersey Department of the Treasury, Unclaimed Property Administration. The 
motion was moved by Mr. Lejnieks and seconded by Mr. Visconti (Yes-Mr. Visconti, Dr. Chang, 
Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell-Harris, Dr. Whittaker; No
None; Abstention-None; Absent-None). The motion passed. 

NEW JERSEY CITY UNIVERSITY 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION TO STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY, UNCLAIMED PROPERTY ADMINISTRATION 

WHEREAS: The New Jersey City University (''NJCU") maintains six (6) properties with 

the State of New Jersey Department of the Treasury, Unclaimed Property Administration ("UPA"); 

and 

WHEREAS: Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 46:30B-1 et seq., the State of New Jersey requires the 

University to formally request the unclaimed properties be returned to the University; and 

WHEREAS: The unclaimed properties consist of outstanding vendor and other checks 

made during the period 2017 - 2021, that have not been cashed or otherwise redeemed, totaling 

approximately $209,329.05; and 

WHEREAS: Upon designation by the University President on behalf of the University, 

the Vice President of Administration and Finance, Brian Kirkpatrick, seeks to now submit 

documentation to the UP A for return of these properties to the University; and now be it 

RESOLVED: That the Board of Trustees, on September 11, 2023, does hereby authorize 

the Vice President of Administration and Finance, Brian Kirkpatrick, to submit and execute the 

necessary documentation to effectuate same and ensure the collection of unclaimed funds. 

Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
September 11, 2023 

13 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

Ms. Reilly put fotward the request to approve the NJCU Resolution Authorizing the DEP Grant. 
The motion was moved by Mr. Visconti and seconded by Ms. Trowell-Harris (Yes-Mr. Visconti, 
Dr. Chang, Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell-Harris, Dr. 
Whittaker; No-None; Abstention-None; Absent-None). The motion passed. 

DEP-069G 
ATTACHMENT E (Gov) 

02/19 
2 

GRANT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

New Jersey City University 

(Name of Grantee) 

AND 

THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY BY 

AND FOR 

THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

GRANT IDENTIFIER: 

AQ22-079 

GOVERNING BODY RESOLUTION 

Toe governing body of New Jersey City University

(print Grantee's name) 

desires to further the public interest by obtaining a grant from the State of New Jersey in the 
amount of approximately _____ to fund the following project: 

Page 1 of 

Purchase of one electric box truck and one electric shuttle bus and replacement of three fossil fueled powered vehicles; purchase of 
electric charging stations and electric infrastructure. 

Therefore, the governing body resolves that --------�Jo=h=n�G=r-ew�------- or the 
successor to the office of 

(print n_am_e_.__ __ 
Interim Director of Research, Grants and Sponsored Programs is authorized ( a) to make application for such a grant, (b) if 

awarded, to execute (print title of authorized official) 

a grant agreement with the State for a grant in an amount not less than o.oo and not more than 
$777,450.30 

and (c) to execute any amendments thereto X any amendments thereto which do not increase the Grantee's 
obligations. 

*The the Board of Trustees of New Jersey City University

(print name of Grantee's governing body, e.g., board of chosen freeholders)

14 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 

authorizes and hereby agrees to match 3.723% of the Total Project A.mount, in compliance with the match 
requirements of the agreement. The availability of the match for such purposes, whether cash, services, or 
property, is hereby certified .. *O % of the match will be made up of in-kind services (if allowed by grant program 
requirements and the agreement) 

The Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable Federal, State, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations in its 
performance pursuant to the agreement. 

Introduced and passed 09/11, 2023 

A 
y 
e 
s 

N 
0 

e 
s 

A 
b 
s 
e 
n 
t 

* The portion of this form between the asterisks should only be completed if matching funds are required under
the terms of the agreement. Where in-kind services are allowed and are stipulated by the Grantee, an attachment
must be provided and appended hereto, breaking out the in-kind services.
Seal 

-----------�------------- -�--------------

15 



DEP-069G 

02/19 

CERTIFICATION* 

ATTACHMENT E (Gov) 

Page 2 of2 

I, Edie Delvecchio, 
(print name) 

municipal clerk county clerk utilities Authority Clerk 

(other, specify) Associate Vice President of Business Services 

(print Grantee's name) 
of New Jersey City University 

certify that this resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of New Jersey City University 

(print name of Grantee's governing body) 
at a meeting duly held on the 11 day of September, 2023 ; that this resolution has not been amended or repealed; and that it remains in 

full force and effect on the date I have subscribed my signature.** 

Edie Delvecchio 

(print name) 

(signature) * 

Associate Vice President of Business Services 

(print title) 

Date: ____________ ** 

* Certification must be signed by an official other than the individual authorized to execute the agreement.

** This date must be no more than sixty (60) days prior to the Grantee's execution of the agreement. If the original 
certification expires prior to the Grantee's execution, the Grantee must submit a currently certified copy of this Attachment E 
when it returns the executed agreement to the Department. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Nothing to report. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Nothing to report. 

NEXT MEETING 

------ -- -- -

The next Board meeting will be held in early December 2023. Ms. Reilly requested a motion for the Board to 
move into executive session prior to the public session in order to discuss confidential personnel and contractual 
matters. The motion was moved by Mr. Perez and seconded by Ms. Trowell-(Yes-Mr. Visconti, Dr. Chang, Mr. 
Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell-Harris, Dr. Whittaker; No-None; Abstention-None; 
Absent-None). The motion passed. 

16 



BOT Public Session Minutes, September 11, 2023 2 

The minutes of the executive session will become available to the public when there is no longer a need for 
confidentiality regarding these matters. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. Reilly requested a motion for the board to adjourn 
the meeting. The motion was moved by Mr. Whittaker and seconded by Mr. Perez (Yes-Mr. Visconti, Dr. Chang, 
Mr. Fowlkes, Mr. Lejnieks, Mr. Perez, Ms. Pottinger, Dr. Trowell-Harris, Dr. Whittaker; No-None; Abstention
None; Absent-None). The motion passed and the meeting was adjourned. 

----------------

Respectfully submitted, 

Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
September 11, 2023 

17 



EXECUTIVE 

18 



<!f}NJCU 
Board of Trustees 

Public Session 

Faculty and Staff Personnel Actions 

Managerial Staff Regular Appointments 

1. Tatiana Reyes, Director, Graduate Admissions

Admissions

Salary: $88,000

Effective: 10/10/2023

Managerial Temporary to Permanent Appointments 

1. Sheila Harris-Adams, Director, Small Business Development Center

Guarini Institute

Salary: $100,000 (Grant Funded Position)

Effective: 10/16/2023

Professional Staff Regular Appointments (RECLASSIFICATIONS) 

1. Samantha Amorino, Assistant to the Dean, Professional Studies

Dean, Professional Studies

Salary: $54,706.69- Professional Services Specialist 4

Effective: 10/23/2023

2. Dominique Smith, New Student Programs & Special Initiatives, Director

Admissions

Salary: $86,641.14

Effective: 10/21/2023

New Hires 

Faculty-Temporary Appointments (Leave Replacement) 

1. Jeanette Baubles, Assistant Professor

Educational Leadership

Salary:$ 86,641.14

Effective: 1/2/2024

Managerial Regular Appointments 

1. Ray Arroyo, Assistant Director, Building Services

FCM

Salary: $ 90,000

Effective: 12/4/2023

1 

19 



Professional Staff Regular Appointments 

�NJCU 
Board of Trustees 

Public Session 

1. Jorge Fernandez, Associate Director, Transfer Admissions

Admissions

Salary: $69,984.76- Professional Services Specialist 2

Effective: 10/10/2023

1. Cindy Gerez, Financial Aid Counselor

Financial Aid

Salary:$ 60,454.95- Professional Services Specialist 3

Effective: 11/20/2023

3. Rosaury Gomez, Counselor

Pre-College Programs

Salary:$ 54,706.70- Professional Services Specialist 4 (Grant Funded Position)

Effective: 11/6/2023

4. � Nicole Leibowitz, Assistant Director, Graduate Admissiqns

Admissions

Salary: $66,653.48- Professional Services Specialist 2

Effective: 10/02/2023

----- -� �-- ----------- ---

2 

20 



FINANCE AND AUDIT 

- - - ----� - - - - -. - ----- . - - -- -- - ---- - - - ----- - -

21 



FY 2024 OPERATING BUDGET UPDATE 

22 



23 



NJCU, in December 2022, had an estimated structural 

operating deficit of $22.7M. In fiscal year 2024, the Board 

approved a budgeted structural deficit of $8.lM on June 

26, 2023. Then, the Board approved an amended 

conservative budget deficit of $6.lM (without State of NJ 

Stabilization funds) on September 11, 2023. 

11/29/2023 2 

24 



Tuitions & Fees 99,034,000 96,878,000 92,545,000 82,831,000 82,183,000 
Auxiliary Enterprises 3,591,000 1,703,000 2,927,000 2,500,000 2,534,000 
Less Institutional Scholarships (9,576,000) (10,717,000) (14,293,000) (14,000,000) (13,201,000) 
Federal, State & Private Grants 4,544,000 4,262,000 6,265,000 1,499,000 
State Appropriation 21,532,000 26,692,000 30,924,000 33,913,000 27,906,000 
State Paid Fringe Benefits 24,258,000 25,777,000 23,916,000 19,400,000 18,077,000 
Stimulus Funds 5,523,000 27,187,000 16,747,000 
All Other Revenue 3,661,000 1,140,000 3,722,000 4,242,000 4,192,000 
Total Revenue 152,567,001 172,922,000 162,753,000 128,886,000 123,190,000 

IEXREN-S�� -�':".4�·dft;�, .·• �r-���-�;i;r- -�-
'a

��-���TJ?�--·•""i; .···�--·�--�[�et·· I-�
--

Proposed1Budg�
��---�� -•ll���,b..._____ ,___._..__.......__ � .. ��,c -·---=_____,1,,,.._•....1..._ . -�•- •�- .I. !!!!J'-=--��A-- �-�t..1..-.-:::U���•�"M 

Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Other Non-Personnel Expense 
CARES/HEERF Direct Payments 
Bad Debt & Other Student Aid 
Interest on Debt 

11/29/2023 

92,439,000 83,840,000 
23,745,000 26,363,000 

499,000 424,000 
2,894,000 2,728,000 

27,979,000 26,717,000 
3,894,000 6,582,000 
3,626,000 3,461,000 
6,421,000 5,972,000 

88,581,000 79,075,000 73,833,000 
22,348,000 19,961,000 18,826,000 

478,000 469,000 470,000 
3,273,000 4,850,000 4,350,000 

23,623,000 20,970,000 23,744,000 
7,183,000 5,751,000 
2,284,000 
6,246,000 

10,529,000 
$ 164,545,000 

3 

25 



FY 2024 

Tuitions & Fees $ 82,183,000 $ (2,500,000) $ 79,683,000 $ $ 79,683,000 $ 2,567,000 $ 82,250,000 

Auxiliary Enterprises 2,534,000 1,346,000 3,880,000 3,880,000 3,880,000 

Less Tuition Waivers and Discounts (13,201,000) 2,500,000 (10,701,000) (10,701,000) 1,500,000 (9,201,000) 

Federal, State & Private Grants 1,499,000 1,499,000 1,499,000 1,499,000 

State Appropriation 26,406,000 23,586,000 23,586,000 23,586,000 

State Stabilization Funds 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 

State Paid Fringe Benefits 18,077,000 (291,250) 17,785,750 17,785,750 450,000 18,235,750 

OBA Payments 1,500,000 4,320,000 2,307,000 6,627,000 1,500,000 8,127,000 

All Other Revenue 4,192,000 4,192,000 4,192,000 4,192,000 

Total Revenue 123,190,000 1,054,750 124,244,750 12,307,000 136,551,750 6,017,000 142,568,750 

Salaries and Wages 73,832,511 (1,165,000) 72,667,511 72,667,511 1,800,000 74,467,511 

Fringe Benefits 18,825,577 (641,250) 18,184,327 18,184,327 450,000 18,634,327 

Insurance 470,000 470,000 470,000 470,000 

Utilities 4,350,000 4,350,000 4,350,000 4,350,000 

Other Non-Personnel Expense 23,744,615 23,744,615 23,744,615 100,000 23,844,615 

Depreciation 10,105,000 

TotalE 

11/29/2023 4 

26 



Tuitions & Fees 

Auxiliary Enterprises 

Less Tuition Waivers and Discounts 

Federal, State & Private Grants 

State Appropriation 

State Stabilization Funds 

State Paid Fringe Benefits 

OBA Payments 

All Other Revenue 

Total Revenue 

Salaries and Wages 

Fringe Benefits 

Insurance 

Utilities 

Other Non-Personnel Expense 

CARES/HEERF Direct Payments 

Bad Debt & Other Student Aid 

Interest on Debt 

Depreciation 

Total Expenses 

$ 2,567,000 

525,000 

3,092,000 

2,100,000 

525,000 

100,000 

2,725,000 

• 

(75,000) 

(75,000) 

(300,000) 

(75,000) 

(375,000) 

1,500,000 

1,500,000 

$ 

1,500,000 

1,500,000 

2,567,000 

1,500,000 

450,000 

1,500,000 

6,017,000 

1,800,000 

450,000 

100,000 

2,350,000 

Surplus/Deficit $ 367,000 $ 300,000 $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 $ 3,667,000 

11/29/2023 5 

27 



The most significant current issue is Capital. As previously noted, 

investment in Capital has been inadequate for many years and has not 

spent its annual depreciation expense in the last five years. This five-year 

deficit totals more than $30M. 

The proposed capital requirements for HVAC, elevators, and related 

items are estimated to be more than $49M. This does not include any 

technology, classroom, or dormitory upgrades. 

NJCU does not have the debt capacity to borrow funds to correct this 

issue. NJCU's leadership is developing strategies to defease its current 

outstand bond debt. 

11/29/2023 6 

28 



New Jersey City University - Ad min ■nd Finance - Cepltal Project Request - Fiscal Year 2025 

--� . ' 

�"'""""-................ �-...... NJOJ bNflllna• llackup _.,.ta ..,.W .,.._.._ Gf _...,_ 

...... "-'t�fadltly-H�Slean1 """ ........ �--...-NJCU11�-...-niaa•........,_.., ..... ..... ��,....,..Naheatalao 
1 ..........,...._.wtdl(ll..........,..__,. ......... .,.._con,plaMawtlh --- cn.-........, ....................... t.a.lty ..... , .......... �� s ---....,.l•R�nl FMaa....CIIMCl9ffl9f•iadc .. •NOhMl:ID�lhatc-.poteMlaly--=-a. ...,,....,. opelmal 19ffl1119 can't: N ,.,........._ we would be 

,,.. ___ .,... _____ t.c.itDe,_. ... --.. 

JO yr.+see.m Chlller,eq111Nsreplac9mantdl» to�� The .. eel end faNlnl HVAC .,.._n, Is c..ans ftnandal Impact 

• 
tNAC lnfradnlctlNW R■plac■ment -a.ter A,Nntbly and fall..,.. Aa■d HVAC lntr..cructur. Is eeusins unha.tthy condttlons for ow RmNyHall 

to NJaJ • r.ntlnt: of lllr-coeled chllar, Npektt,a f-..lty uni- FaclltdesandCoNlrvcllan MM'l ... ment $ •.ooa.-Components· Roeuy Hall 8uldJna studenta, faculty, Mtd ...n when .,...,,,_, tentpa can't lte m......-1 which Ill Hnt FCUa • HVAC contnllb. and multlpla coU problenta -
neca--,y to balance air flow fn the � -.am llnes,spenc■,,.WnMtd,..__dt .. haattna 

ApdHVAC� .. ��condlllanaforour......_, HVACllullclna:Maflaaem9"'SymlMll(8MS)-........ 
faatky, and lltaffwhen opllmal _,..,.. can't lie,,........• uppNltli In 

HVAC ____ (BMSJ· ----------
constantmady ,....,.,,.,, ..,.,,._.,._........, partll 

• -- hava ..._ ......... W■ _......,._to..........._ proper ,---�MM,ap .... nt $ •.ooa-UppaalNandR....,_•dataaMI ........... ....,........r.,.aam C18M5) ,......______......eral ofeneraveffldency ,.__..tempahw......,,..whleftblfflpac:1lnaleemlna and occupant cantfort front■ ....... .....,...,,_., IIMS manltan ..... conlnlla 
--

e&.ctricalandnHtChank:al- auch•HVACtllMI..__ 

1..ockd.wn matasle• play■ crtdcal _..kl.,_,,.,. the Mfety, MCWtty, and Loeldna dawn ■ Khool Mllpa ......_ potandal dwwat:a an4 
.. 

c.m..-ww. Security Enhancements ta • ....._ II-. and w.lne• of litUdena., faculty, and _,, f• ,,..dad ,.__nee that meMUres e■...,.....WW. rnlrtc:t:I tt..W movement wkhln your buffdtnl-. llmklna: thefr Fadlltlnand CoNlrvcdon M....-ment $ 1,500,-
·- .. In plKa to help pt'Olact their Mf•ty• MCUrtty. encl-14-befna: of Injury or aWlltytohermolhen. harm from KW•..__,., c.ff'Oftsm,. • ,.s.e.tf threata. 

•
.... tW1.a.w.ea,.•1-z. ...... ,, ............. �ADAVW.-can .......... lD ..... WramuctuNI�..,.,.. 

., __ __ .. _____ FadlldN aMI � Malapmenl s i.soo.-
- ............ �malllsls,-palnltllfflcult ................ beendtfflcuh:toflll ................... ___.� 

Apprommatety 80K of lhe Unlve�• ....._. cDfnpUtenl do not MIN lhe 
,.sou,cn 11D .uppart Mk:rDeGft � 11 . ...,_.lmndy Z°" of the 
computen hewe been .,..__d .._.,. Iha ...- 2 yean and wll � Microsoft Will not be .W. to &et auppor1: -,d Neelve NC'Urfty update• 

•
MS Windows 11 Computer Refrnh .,.. Iha CJKo DtJla Wlnclews 11. Windows 10 wll ao •nd of aupport: hi October of 2025. 1bls Mein Cempvt,, Schem of BUUMI• 

horn the manufac:tura a...,q thla �nt vulnerable to lnfonnatton Technolosv s Z,720.000 Networtc Up,srade ,..... ls for the� to ,eplac:a,00 dnlttepandlaptup campu&an •wel & Squlrw Hell 
• the current -- netwon: w• � In Z014 with .. eapactad llh ..,.n of 

.. curfty ...... L 

10 yean. The two cora Osco 6800 -ttchlu wll aa •nd of support In 2028 end 
Iha 3850 a.co.............__ ace■- ..ttc:hettwUI- end 
0ur..---... ..... -=--------

�--H-U-- ,.._atha......_,.........._..__. ................. CIOl'ltlnuHto'9 .. NMI All -.n and condenaaCia hne9..,. .,.,.. va--old and 
7 fracture..NJaJ ls.....,_. to.,.... contplenee wllh cencema ,_ lack of or no -- Faclltles and Conacrucdon MeniiliptMnt s s.ooa.-

_ .. _.,.,__ 

,
�to........._ that can patientlelly� ,,.._ • .,._..Md PNP■ffY ........ .._ .. 

Jwtadlctlenal Vloletlona ... penllftna ... to eatmlNphlc lnfrastruc1ura , ....... NJQJ b rendna • backup ._..r to awoW total loa of llulldlna 

Bol'9r Plent OpentloN FadUty-Hlsh-f',...,,- Stila11 Hirsh pre_.,. -.am bolen -NJOI 1111 ,..,._4 to op.rate • primary and uaapandcatatrvphlc�felluN. Noheatebo 
• -■condery bollerwkh (1) NdltlCNNI bedwp ...._,to.,... compllance with MelnC.mpua a.ate unheakhy condttlona for our---rlb,, faculty6 end Fedlltln end CoMlruc1lorl Manaaement $ ·--aollet# z. lleplecement FM Global concams for leek of or na MM kl bulldlfte that can potandely CMa. ...,, when -,.dm•I tampa cat1'1 IN m....-d. we would be 

,__ __ � .... - fon:et11oc11ne1...-

�AIMVW....ca,heppen._ ....... ��..,,--i __ .. _____ 
• GSUll•Elewalor• 1. Z, end •a lnf...en.ctu.. �nt ........ .............. ,.........,....dlfflcult ................ ----�u..a-....,_ ---tllffleuk:•·-- ............... F.-...end�� s i.soo.-

--

SO yr.+ Staem Chllar ,. .... repiec9ment ._ to cata91ropNc � Th■-ed•nd,...,.HVAC�m .. caualnaftnancWlmpect 

10 
tNAC lnfraatructuN Replac.,_nt • Chlle-r "-"'bfv .Kl f.U..., ...,_d tNAC Inf� Is� Ufthao-'thy cDndldona for- Groank:W. a c....tn1 Ubrary 

1oNJOJ -Nntlnt: .t ..-cooled chller,.......,... r....ttv wtl- F■dltdnendleon.trucdori�meM 5 ■,000,DOO Components- c.roanac111e a Gu.tnl ua...,y llulldlna lltmenta. faculty, end staff when opdmal tentpa can't be l'ftanased which Is vent FCU• • HVAC controh. .Kl muhlple coll proWerM • 
necusarytc, belenc. elrflow- In the W1dlrc -.em I'"-. spenc• .,..., .. end ...a.tad forheadna 

F,_.J,ou.,tnll.J&twy .. n.-tarat.end■ZI� Patanllal ADA VWetloM cat happen.,_ to apd lftfN9truc:t:ur ca&l9ln& MW_.. 
...__,,� .. ca-...dv......,._"-nanclhN 

u R,.._.,_ ... --------elHlawn ................. dlfflcult .... � ....,._ 
F .... J.Guatft!Ubnry __,. dlfflcuh eo flxtllle •...a...,_ FIKlk:ln endl Canllnlc1lon M....-- s 1,000,-

----

11/29/2023 7 

29 



12 

1!I 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

1!I 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Profeulonal Studies Bulkffna: � Elevator# 1, ■nd # 2 
lnfratructuni Replacement 

Hepburn Hall • Elevetor and lnfnosbucture Replacement 

IT I- Secandaty Dato Cente, Relacatlon 

Hepl,wn Hall -Flat Roof and Slate Roof Repairs 

GSU8 • Roof Replacement 

Graanldde Holl• Roof Replacement 

- Hall. Roof Replacement 

Fries Hall· Roof Replacement 

Fries H■II • -and I- Replacement 

Co-Op HaU Dormlto,y • Elevetor and lnfnosbucture 
Replacement 

Potentlal ADA Vlolatlons can happen due to •eel lnfratructuni causlna several Profeulonal Sludles BuDdfna elevators to bntal<-down molclns repal,. dllflcult due to - parU. 

Replacement ol 30+yearold roof that ha been -- -- over and 
hodbecomepn,l,lematlc. 

Potantlal ADA Vlolatlons can happen due to apd fnfrastructure causfnl Nveral 
elevators to bntal<-down molcfns repairs dlfflcult due to - po,ts. 

Hepburn Hall 

Secandatydata_to_al_and _ _._� 
data -IIIUlt be relocand""'" UACIIS toJMAC. due to futute plans· 
n,qulred to provfcle NtVkes In cue al primary data canw-fallure. 

Replacement of 90+ year old roof that has been patched several times ove r and H pbu H n 
taav. becom. prvblematk. 

• m • 

Replacement of so+ year old roof that has been patched several times over and 
Fries Hall 

have became problematk • 

..__ __ can..._duetoapd_,......._I FrlesHall -tobrull-downmolcfns ....... dllllcultduoto--

-ndalADA lllolatlonscan""-n duo toapd lnlnatrudure causlnaaoW!flll 
elevators to bntal<-down molcfns repairs dlffkult due to - perts. Co-Op Holl Donnlto,v 

---lorl.lfe.Safety5-ffll-Bohr- llack-uppne_to_phpkal plantand-lntheeventol MalnCempua �F■<llty _.,1oa, 

Boner Plant Dpenotlona Fadtlty. Hflh-PntllUre Steam 
Boller# 4 • Replacement 

Jurladlctlonal lllolatlona are pondlns due to ..-phlc lnmstructun, t.nure. 
Hlch prellUN steam bollers - NJCU b required to operate • prfma,y and 
aoeondary bollor wfth (1) ■cldltlonal backup boller to onaure compll■nco with 
FM Global concerns for lack of or no heat to bufldlna that can potentlally cause 
freeze exposura and property damases. 

Concreta _ _..,._end - .. cradclns due to .......... 
..-....-......contnlcdon,end--

Me lntempua 

odrallell 

Elevator Infrastructure Is constantly bntaldnc down and ha Facnttles ■nd Construction Mllnqement $ been dlfflcult to fix due to obsolete ■nd apd lnfrutructure 

If roof lo - replocecl, --- - Interior and 
""-the IYffl --'>lllty. FlldlidesandCo-..ctlon--ment $ 

NCGVffdatalnceHolpmwyhanlw ... follunr, 
deletfon,cyben,ttacband--... 

... -.... dally and llfdllv9d - for ..... 
ntlon. 

- intrude Interior and 

r wffl Intrude Interior and 

wlllntrudelntarlo<and 

Fedlltla and Co-..ctlon �•-

Fadlitles and Construction Manqement 

F-and Co-..ctlon ---

FaclUtles ■nd Construcdon Manaa:ement 

F-and Co-..ctlon ,._.ment 

If roof la not replaced, wamr wtn lntudo 9-rkw ■nd donroy n�-- --• ---�--
the useablllty. Fae � - CorAuu..WU(l Manasement 

--•constantlybntolcfns down and ... 
bnndlfflculttollxdueto_and...,._ F-and�---

--la constantly bnolcfns down and Ml F■dlltlea and Conmuctlon M-•mont been dlfflcutt to fix due to obsolete and qed Jnhutruc:ture 

Outaandueto--- .. -----

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

..,,.,. --• cold end Ice, hurrlcanea, ............ -. F-end Co- Menapment $ 
WDldd cauao major problems to bulldlnp lf-b lalt. 

NJCU la rentlns • bactcup bollor to evold ,-1 IDa al bulldlns 
usce and catastrophic: Jnfrastructure faRure. No heat also 
create unhealthy conditions for our students. faculty. and 
staff when optimal temps can't be man .. ed. we would be 
fon:odtocloNbtdkllnp 

lonprtheylD unrepolred, laundotlon cnodls wlll ltffl 
lettlns In-, ultlmetaly-..... 
""'- "'""' 

FacAltles and Construction Mllnasement 

$ 

1,000,000 

2,700,000 

500,000 

500,000 

3,100,000 

2,500,000 

1,100,000 

1,400,000 

900,000 

500,000 

500,000 

250,000 

4,000,000 

250,000 

$ 51,420,000 

11/29/2023 8 

30 



1) State of NJ capital infusion

2) State of NJ and Federal grant programs

3) Energy company grants and programs

4) Increase the budget for capital

The solution needs to be an overall combination 
of all these options. 

11/29/2023 9 

31 



1) Enrollment and Retention Plans

2) Academic Master Plan

3) Strategic University Plan

4) Live within our budget and implement reformed budget planning for FY25 & beyond

S) Review all options to grow and determine the ROI for student success & mission

6) Spend for future growth & continued mission sustainability

11/29/2023 10 

32 



NJCU Month End Net Cash Balances October 31, 2023 

11/29/2023 

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$30,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$0 

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

..... 2020 ..... 2021 ..... 2022 ..... 2023 ..... 2024 

As of today, no funds have been drawn down from State's Stabilization funds. 

60% of OBA payments will be received in November ($4.9M). 
11 

33 



OFFICE OF mE PRESIDENT 

November 17, 2023 

Re: FY25 Budget Planning and Review Recommendations 

Dear Chairman Visconti and Members of the Board of Trustees, 

I am writing to provide recommendations and key insights regarding the budget planning process for New Jersey 

City University (NJCU) for Fiscal Year 2025. As we embark on the development of our FY25 budget, it is crucial 

to align our financial strategy with our institution's mission and long-tenn objectives, while ensuring transparency, 

accountability, and shared governance. 

The FY25 budget must continue the work of our successful short-term implementation of the recovery and 

revitaliz.ation plan by strategically addressing various essential areas, including structural operating deficit 

reduction, long-tenn debt defeasance, deferred maintenance, student success/retention investments, resource 

allocation for mission focus on economic mobility, community engagement, and the enculturation of a lifelong 

learner commitment. These recommendations will guide us in continuing to align our budget with the 

university's mission and long-term sustainability. 

I emphasize the following recommendations for your consideration: 

1. Strategic Alignment:

Ensure that the FY25 budget is in alignment with NJCU's mission, vision, and strategic priorities. Our budget 

should reflect our commitment to academic excellence, student success, and a supportive campus environment. 

2. Stakeholder Engagement:

Incorporate robust stakeholder engagement in the budgeting process. Engage faculty, staff, students, and 

administrators in meaningful discussions and seek their input. This shared governance approach will lead to a 

more comprehensive and inclusive budget that considers diverse perspectives. 

3.1ransparency: 

Promote transparency at all stages of budget development Provide access to budget-related information, 

including revenues, expenditures, and financial decisions. Transparency will enhance trust and collaboration 

among all stakeholders. 

New Jersey City University 12039 Kennedy Boulevard I Jersey City, New Jersey 07305 

34 



4. Data-Driven Decision-Making:

Base budget decisions on solid data and evidence. Utilize historical financial data, enrollment trends, and 

performance metrics to infonn budget allocations. This will ensure that our investments are strategic and effective. 

A. Revenue Diversification: Explore opportunities to diversify revenue streams. This includes

expanding online education, increasing non-degree programs, and seeking partnerships for
research and development projects. Revenue diversification will help reduce our reliance on

tuition and state funding.

B. Budget Realignment with Mission: Ensure that our budget allocations directly support our

mission and strategic objectives. Investments in academic programs, faculty development,
student support services, community engagement, and lifelong learner programs should all

align with our commitment to economic mobility and community enrichment.

5. Fiscal Responsibility:

Maintain fiscal responsibility by ensuring that our budget is balanced, and resources are allocated efficiently. 

Regularly review and monitor budget performance to make necessary adjustments. 

A. Structural Operating Deficit Reduction: Enshrining the reduction of the structural operating

deficit is of paramount importance. We must continue developing and implementing a

comprehensive and sustainable plan to reduce this deficit, ensuring that our ongoing
operational expenses are balanced by revenues. The University must routinely evaluate cost

saving measures, revenue enhancements, and efficiency improvements across the institution.

B. Long-Term Debt Defeasance: Pursue the reduction and mitigation of the University's long
term debt obligations. Develop a clear strategy for debt defeasance, leveraging endowments,

grants, or other sources, to alleviate the financial burden on the university.

C. Deferred Maintenance: Prioritize investments in deferred maintenance to ensure our campus
facilities meet the standards required for a conducive learning and working environment.

Neglecting infrastructure and facilities not only impedes our academic mission but can also

lead to increased costs in the long run.

6. Strategic Investments:

Prioritize investments in academic programs, faculty and staff development, student support services, research, 

and innovation. These strategic investments are essential for our long-term growth and reputation. 

A. Student Success and Retention: Invest in programs and initiatives that foster student success

and retention. Allocate resources for academic advising, counseling services, career
development, and other resources that contribute to improved student outcomes. Focus on data

driven strategies to identify at-risk students and provide timely interventions.

B. Mission Focus on Economic Mobility: Reinforce our commitment to economic mobility.

Develop programs and initiatives that ensure all students, regardless of their background, have
access to the transformative power of higher education. Scholarships, work-study

opportunities, and career-focused curricula are central to this mission.

2 

35 



C. Community Engagement: Strengthen our engagement with the local and regional
community. Collaborate with community organizations, businesses, and government agencies
to create partnerships that benefit both the university and the community. Engaging with the
community aligns with our mission and provides opportunities for experiential learning.

D. Lifelong Learner Enculturation: Promote and enculturate a commitment to lifelong learning
among students. Develop and expand lifelong learning programs, certificates, and resources
that enable students to continue their education and skill development beyond their initial

degree.

E.  Faculty and Staff Recruitment, Retention, and Development: Expand outreach to 
underrepresented groups in recruitment, including proactive engagement with professional 
organizations. Implement targeted advertising and job postings to reach diverse candidates. 

Offer incentives for employee referrals and successful recruitment of underrepresented 
candidates. Develop mentorship and professional development programs tailored to the needs 

of underrepresented faculty and staff. Support affinity groups and networks for faculty and 
staff to create a sense of belonging. Regularly assess and address workplace climate and 

concerns through surveys and open forums. Encourage continuous career development 
opportunities and pathways to leadership positions. Infuse diversity and inclusion principles 
into the university's strategic plan and mission. Foster an inclusive and culturally competent 
campus environment. Implement equity training for all employees to increase awareness and 
inclusivity. Support curriculum development that highlights diverse perspectives and 
experiences. Allocate budget resources for diversity recruitment and retention initiatives. 

7. Contingency Planning:

Recognize the importance of contingency planning. In unpredictable financial landscapes, it is crucial to have 

contingency plans in place to address unexpected challenges or opportunities. 

8. Tuition and Financial Aid:

Consider the balance between tuition increases and financial aid allocation. Ensure that the cost of education 
remains accessible and affordable while maintaining the quality of our programs. 

9. Infrastructure and Technology:

Allocate funds for infrastructure improvements and educational technology enhancements. A modern and well
maintained campus, along with state-of-the-art technology, contributes to a positive learning environment. 

10. Performance Metrics:

Establish clear performance metrics to evaluate the impact of budget decisions on student success and operational 
efficiency. Regularly assess and report on these metrics to track progress. 

Maintain transparency in financial reporting. Communicate clearly with the university community and external 

stakeholders about our financial health, the progress in addressing the deficit, and the impact of investments on 
student success, economic mobility, and community engagement. 

In conclusion, as we move forward with the FY25 budget planning process, it is paramount that we prioritize 
alignment with our strategic objectives, engagement with stakeholders, transparency, and data-driven decision-

3 

36 



making. NJCU's fiscal health is essential for our continued growth and success, and the Board of Trustees plays 

a pivotal role in ensuring that the budget serves the best interests of our institution and the community we serve. 

I look forward to working closely with the Board of Trustees and all university stakeholders to create a budget 

that reflects our shared commitment to NJCU's mission and vision. 

Thank you for your ongoing support and dedication to the success of New Jersey City University. 

Sincerely, 

Andres Acebo 
Interim President 
New Jersey City University 

Cc: NJCU Senior Leadership 
Dr. Fran Moran, University Senate President 
Henry Amoroso, Fiscal Monitor 

4 

37 



38 



39 



40 



41 



42 



43 



44 



45 



46 



47 



48 



49 



50 



51 



52 



53 



54 



55 



56 



57 



58 



59 



60 



61 



62 



63 



64 



65 



66 



67 



68 



69 



70 



71 



72 



73 



74 



75 



76 



77 



78 



79 



80 



81 



82 



83 



84 



85 



86 



87 



88 



89 



90 




